City of Wimberley

221 Stillwater, P.O. Box 2027, Wimberley, Texas 78676
Phone: (512) 847-0025 - Fax: (512) 8470422

Steve Thurber, Mayor - Matt Meeks, Mayor Pro-Tem
Council Members - Tom Talcott, Cindy Anderson, Pam Showalter, John White
Don Ferguson, City Administrator

September 22, 2014

Jo Dawn Bomar, Director

Program Administration and Reporting
Water Supply and Infrastructure

Texas Water Development Board

P.O. Box 13231, 1700 N. Congress Ave.
Austin, Texas 78711-3231

RE: City of Wimberley State Fiscal Year 2015 Clean Water State Revolving Fund
Program Application

Dear Ms. Bomar:

Enclosed you will find one (1) original, one (1) paper copy and one (1) electronic copy of
the State Fiscal Year 2015 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program Application
submitted by the City of Wimberley for funding the planning and design of a wastewater
collection and treatment system for central Wimberley.

We appreciate your consideration of this application and encourage favorable review. If
you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 512.847.0025 or
dferguson@cityofwimberley.com.

Sincerely,

Don Ferguson
City Administrator
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APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION

NOTICE TO ALL APPLICANTS

This application is comprehensive, covering all loan and grant assistance applications for water
and wastewater infrastructure financing through the various TWDB programs. The format of the
application is intended to expedite the review process for both the applicant and TWDB staff.
This application is intended for political subdivisions, including Water Supply Corporations.

Each applicant must submit TWO double-sided copies of which ONE is marked ORIGINAL. Also
ONE indexed, electronic copy, via electronic storage media such as CD or flash drive using MS
Word, Excel or Adobe Acrobat. The application must be submitted to:

Texas Water Development Board
Water Supply & Infrastructure

P O Box 13231

1700 N. Congress Avenue, 5™ Floor
Austin, Texas 78711-3231

(78701 for courier deliveries)

Only COMPLETE APPLICATIONS for projects will be considered for funding. A COMPLETE
APPLICATION consists of all of the applicable information and forms requested in this
document.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

Applicants MUST use this form for application to ensure all requested information is included for
review.

When preparing this application please review the Application and all Guidance and Forms, listed at

the end.

TWDB Use Only

Name of Applicant:

Date application received:

Date administratively complete:




TWDB-0148
Updated 3-18-14

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “A5”)

Part A. General Information

A1

A2

A3
A4

A5

A6

A7

Legal name of applicant along with physical and mailing addresses.
City of Wimberley

P.O. Box 2027 / 221 Stillwater

Wimberley, Texas 78676

Brief description of project. Currently, the City of Wimberley (the “City”) owns and operates a
15,000 gallon per day (the “GPD”") wastewater treatment plant located on the site of the City-
owned Blue Hole Regional Park in Wimberley. This plant provides wastewater service for two (2)
customers — Deer Creek of Wimberley Nursing Home and Rehabilitation Center and the Regional
Park. The treatment plant is an extended aeration activated sludge package plant which has an
interim operating permit of 15,000 GPD and a final permit of 50,000 GPD. It produces effluent
that is disposed of on the Park site via subsurface irrigation. The City is proposing to relocate,
upgrade and expand the treatment plant at the Park to provide wastewater service to
approximately 170 properties in the adjacent central Wimberley area. Plans call for initially
increasing the plant capacity to 75,000 GPD, and ultimately to 100,000 GPD, to meet projected
service demands. The plant will utilize a tertiary treatment process that will produce a higher
quality effluent (Type |) than is currently being produced (Type Il). While the City would have the
ability to discharge treated effluent into a local stream, the City intends to minimize the need for
discharges by beneficially reusing the treated effluent at the Park and potentially in other parts of
the service area. In addition to the above-mentioned plant expansion, plans call for the
construction of a collection system in the service area, along with the infrastructure needed to
deliver treated effluent to the Park and service area for reuse. The design phase of the
wastewater project is about to begin. The City has applied for the major amendment to the City’s
existing wastewater permit required for the wastewater project. The preliminary cost estimate for
the project is $5.5 million. To fund the project, the City intends to issue System Revenue Bonds,
with a pledge of utility revenues from users of the wastewater system along with revenues from
the sale of effluent for beneficial reuse.

List service area county(ies). Hays County
Population of Applicant’s total service area. 90

Name, title, address, phone, and email address(es) of official representative(s).
Don Ferguson

City Administrator

P.O. Box 2027 / 221 Stillwater

Wimberley, Texas 78676

512.847.0025 (Office)

512.847.0422 (Fax)

dferguson@cityofwimberley.com

Names and titles of principal officers.
Steve Thurber

Mayor
City of Wimberley

Name, address, phone, e-mail address and contact person for:
a) Project Engineer
Steve Coonan, PE




Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “A5”)

A8

b)

d)

g)

Alan Plummer Associates, Inc.
6300 La Calma, Suite 400
Austin, Texas 78752
512.452.5905 (Office)
512.452.2325 (Fax)
scoonan@apienv.com

Bond Counsel

Tom Pollan

Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP

3711 S. MoPac Expressway, Building #1, Suite 300
Austin, Texas 78746

512.472.8021 (Office)

512.320.5638 (Fax)

tpollan@bickerstaff.com

Financial Advisor

Garry Kimball & Jennifer Douglas
Specialized Public Finance Inc.
248 Addie Roy Road, Suite B-103
Austin, Texas 78746
512.275.7300 (Office)
512.275.7305 (Fax)
garry@spubfin

jiennifer@spubfin

Certified Public Accountant (or other appropriate rep)
N/A

Legal Counsel (if other than Bond Counsel)

Emily Rogers
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP

3711 S. MoPac Expressway, Building #1, Suite 300
Austin, Texas 78746

512.472.8021 (Office)

512.320.5628 (Fax)

erogers@bickerstaff.com

Any other consultant representing the Applicant before the Board

N/A

Applicant’s primary contact person for day-to-day project implementation.

Don Ferguson
City Administrator

City of Wimberley

Current funding request is for which phases? Check all that apply.

[] Planning [] Acquisition [] Design X Construction

2
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “A5”)

A9 Requesting funding from which programs? Check all that apply.

PROGRAM

a) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) []

b) Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) []

c) Texas Water Development Fund (DFund) []

d) State Participation [ ]

-€) Rural Water Assistance Fund (RWAF) []

f) Water Infrastructure Fund (WIF) []

g) Economically Distressed Areas Program (EDAP) O

h) If other please explain:

A10

No X

AMOUNT REQUESTED

$

$ 5,500,000

Is Applicant requesting funding to refinance existing debt?

Yes []

2

If yes, provide a copy of the document securing the debt to be refinanced.

Item attached Yes [ ]

No X

A11  If additional funds are necessary to complete the project, or you have applied or received a
commitment from any other funding agency for this project or any aspect of this project, please

provide a listing of those sources.

Type of Date Applied for Funding Secured
Funding Source | Funds(Loan/Grant) Amount ($) Funding Date
CWSRF Loan $650,000 10/29/12 4/18/13
CWSRF Loan $5,500,000 9/22/14 N/A
Total Funding
from All Sources $6,150,000

Comments: A $650,000 loan was previously secured from the Texas Water Development Board (the

“Board”) to fund the planning and design phase of the proposed wastewater project. The planning phase is

complete and design work is about to begin. The City is seeking a second loan, in the amount of $5,500.000

from the Board to fund actual construction of the subject wastewater system.
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “A5”)
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “A5”)

Only applicants applying for funding from the CWSRF and DWSRF Programs must complete A12
through A15 of this section.

Pursuant to Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) the applicant is
required to:

1. Obtain a DUNS number that will represent a universal identifier for all federal funding
assistance. DUNS numbers can be obtained from Dun and Bradstreet at
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/,

2. Register with System for Award Management (SAM) and maintain current registration at all
times during which the Board loan agreement is active or under consideration by the Board.
Register at: https://sam.gov.

A12  Applicant's Data Universal Number System (DUNS) Number:
DUNS 004496922

A13  The applicant has registered and will maintain current SAM registration at all times during which
a federal subaward is active or under consideration by the Board.
Yes X No [ ]

A14  Federal Awards information:
1. Did applicant receive over 80% of their revenue from Federal Awards last year?
Yes [] No X
2. Did applicant receive over $25 million in Federal Awards last year?
Yes [ ] No X
3. Public does not have access to executive compensation information via SEC or IRS reports?
Yes [] No X

A15 If applicant checked YES to ALL three boxes in A14 above, applicant is required to disclose the
name and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers.

Officer's Name Officer's Compensation ($)

N/A N/A
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”)

Part B. Financial Information
B1 List top ten customers of the water and wastewater system by annual revenue and with
corresponding usage and percentage of total use, including whether any are in bankruptcy.
Water
Annual Percent of Total Bankruptcy
Customer Name Annual Billings ($) | Usage (gal) Water Revenue (Y/N)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Comments: Public water service in Wimberley is not provided by the City of Wimberley but rather by the

Wimberley Water Supply Corporation (the “WWSC"), a non-profit water supply corporation.

Wastewater
o Percent of Total
Annual Billings Annual Wastewater Bankruptcy
Customer Name ($) Usage (gal) Revenue (Y/N)
Deer Creek of Wimberley $230,588.16 6,622,431 97% N
Blue Hole Regional Park — City of $7,416 170,340 3% N

Wimberley
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part BS”)

Comments: The City of Wimberley acquired and assumed operation of its wastewater treatment plant in
January 2012. The volumetric wastewater rates have not been adjusted since acquisition of the plant.

B2

B3

Attach a five-year comparative system operating statement (not condensed) including audited
prior years and an unaudited year-to-date statement, with number of customers for each year.
Unaudited year-to-date statement must reflect the financial status for a period not exceeding the
latest 6 months.

Item attached Yes ] No X

Current average Residential Usage and Rate Information

Avg. Monthly
Usage Avg. Monthly Projected Monthly

Service No. of Connections (gallons) Bill ($) Increase Necessary ($)

Water

N/A

Wastewater N/A

B4

BS

B6

B7

Provide the date of the last water and wastewater rate increase and the average amount of
increase per customer.

Avg. Monthly
Service Date of Increase Increase ($)
Water N/A

Wastewater N/A

Describe procedures for collecting monthly customer bills (include procedures for collection of
delinquent accounts)

Wastewater customers are billed by the City of Wimberley on a monthly basis. In addition to a
base service fee, each customer pays a volumetric fee based on a customer’s average water
usage. All charges billed are due and payable on or before sixteen (16) days after the date of
billing. A penalty in the amount of five percent (5%) of the existing unpaid balance is accessed
on each delinquent account on the thirtieth (30) day after the date of billing. Failure to pay all
charges when due shall authorize the City, at its discretion, to discontinue and/or disconnect all
sewer service with such notice as may be provided by law. If the City discontinues sewer service
for any reason, there will be a reconnection charge.

Attach ONE copy of an annual audit of financial statements, including the management letter,
for the preceding fiscal year, prepared by a certified public accountant or firm of accountants
and, if the last annual audit was more than 6 months ago, then, provide interim financial
information.

Item attached Yes X No []

If financial assistance is in the form of a loan, all bonds are book-entry only. The applicant
acknowledges that they are aware of, and will abide by, the Depository Trust Company
participant requirements.

Yes X No []




TWDB-0148
Updated 3-18-14

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”)

B8

B9

Disclose all issues that may affect the project or the applicant's ability to issue and/or repay debt.
The City of Wimberley issued $650,000 in Tax Notes in 2013 to secure a loan from the Texas
Water Development Board for the planning and design loan of the proposed wastewater system.
As part of the debt issuance, the City pledged ad valorem tax revenues to repay the debt, if
existing funds were not available. To date, the City has not had to levy and collect ad valorem
taxes, as existing funds have been available to make the required debt payments. As structured,
the referenced Tax Notes would not limit, reduce or attach to the expected revenue pledge
required for the loan being sought in this application to construct the subject wastewater system.
No other known issues exist which would limit the City’s ability to issue debt for construction of
the wastewater system. Funding for repayment of the construction loan will come from
connection fees and system revenues collected by the City from users of the wastewater
system, along with revenue from the sale of treated effluent for beneficial reuse.

Has the applicant ever defaulted on any debt? Yes ] No X

If yes, disclose all circumstances surrounding prior default(s). N/A



TWDB-0148
Updated 3-18-14

Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”)

B10 Attach a listing of total outstanding debt. Segregate by type (General Obligation or Revenue)
and present a consolidated schedule for each, showing total annual requirements. Note any
authorized but unissued debt.

Item attached Yes X No []
B11  Attach the direct and overlapping tax rate table (regardless of pledge);
Item attached Yes X No []

B12 Provide the last five-years of data showing total taxable assessed valuation including net ad
valorem taxes levied and corresponding tax rate (detailing debt service and general purposes),
and tax collection rate. If applicant does not have taxing authority, provide the assessed
values of the county.

Net Taxable Interest & Percentage | Percentage
Fiscal Year Assessed General Sinking Current Total
Ending Value ($) Tax Rate Fund Fund Tax Levy $ | Collections | Collections
2011 $429,515,195 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2012 $435,216,811
2013 $439,002,587
2014 $452,664,298
2015 $468,437,184

Comments: The net taxable assessed values listed above represent the value of all property within the
City. The requested tax rate information is not available as the City does not currently levy an ad valorem

tax.

B13

B14

Attach the last five-years of tax assessed values delineated by Classification (Residential,
Commercial and Industrial). If applicant does not have taxing authority, provide the
assessed values of the county.

Items attached Yes X

No

[

If the Applicant collects sales tax, provide the sales tax collection history for the past five years
(regardless of pledge).

Fiscal Year
Ending Total Collections
2010 $561,113
2011 $594,429
2012 $628,460
2013 $650,914
2014 YTD $628,637

Comments: The sales tax collection data reported above reflects collections for the entire City of
Wimberley. FY 2014 is through 8/31/2014.
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”)

B15 Pro forma:

a) If system revenues are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt, provide a pro
forma indicating, for each year debt is outstanding:

projected gross revenues;

operating and maintenance expenditures;

outstanding and proposed debt service requirements; and

net revenues available for debt service and coverage of current and proposed

debt paid from revenues.

ot ol

b) If taxes are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt, provide a pro forma indicating,
for each year debt is outstanding:
1. the tax rate necessary to repay current and proposed debt paid from taxes; and
2. list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule.

c) If a combination of system revenues and taxes are anticipated to be used to repay the
proposed debt, provide a pro forma indicating, for each year debt is outstanding:
1. projected gross revenues, operating and maintenance expenditures, net
revenues available for debt service;
2. the tax rate necessary to pay the current and proposed debt; and
3. list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule

Item(s) attached  Yes X No []

B16 If you have taxing authority, provide the current top ten taxpayers showing percentage of
ownership to total assessed valuation. State if any are in bankruptcy and explain anticipated
prospective impacts in comments below. If any of these have changed in the past three years,
please provide information on the changes to the top ten.

Taxpayer Name Assessed Value Percent of Total Bankruptcy (Y/N)

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Comments: The City of Wimberley does not currently levy and collect ad valorem taxes.

10
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”)

B17  Provide the maximum tax rate permitted by law per $100 of property value $1.50

B18 Provide any current bond ratings with date received.

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s Fitch
G.O. NR NR NR
Revenue

B19  Provide the following Community Information from the most current Census. This information
may be found at: http://factfinder2.census.gov/
a) Median Household income (MHI) $48,971
b) Unemployment rate 3.5%
c) Percentage of area below poverty level 24.1%
d) Median age of work force 55.7
e) Population 2,626
f) List 10 largest employers

Name Number of Employees
Educational Services, Healthcare and Social Assistance 340
Professional, Scientific, Management, Administrative and 156
Waste Management Services
Retail/Trade 137
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate, Rental and Leasing 107
Manufacturing 71
Public Administration 68
Construction 64
Transportation, Warehousing and Ultilities 32
Arts, Entertainment, Recreation, Accommodation and 21
Food Services
Other Services, except Public Administration 16

Comments (example, any anticipated changes to the tax base, employers etc.) N/A

11
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part C5”)

Part C. Legal

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

Citation to the specific legal authority in the Texas Constitution or statutes pursuant to which the
applicant is authorized to provide the service for which the applicant is requesting financial
assistance. The City is a General Law City (Section 5.001, Texas Local Government Code)
which has a Certriicate of Convenience and Necessity and owns and operates a wastewater
system. Section 552.001, Texas Local Government Code)

Citation to legal authority under which debt is proposed to be issued including authority to make
proposed pledge of revenues. Chapter 1501, Texas Government Code

Full legal name of the security for the proposed debt issue(s). Provide a full explanation of
pledge being offered and existing rate covenants as well as relevant additional bonds
requirements, reserve fund requirements or other requirements needed to ensure parity with
other outstanding creditors.

City of Wimberley, Texas Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 (Central Wimberley
Wastewater Project. No existing rate covenants exist, as there are no outstanding sewer system
revenue obligations. The pledge will be utility net revenues from users of the wastewater system,
along with revenues from the sale of effluent for beneficial reuse

For proposed revenue bonds, attach copies of the most recent resolution/ordinance(s)
authorizing any outstanding parity debt. This is essential to insure outstanding bond covenants
are consistent with covenants that might be required for TWDB financing.

Item(s) attached Yes[] No[] NA X

Attach the resolution from the governing body requesting Financial Assistance.
TWDB-0201A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.aspindex.asp)

Item attached Yes X No []

Attach the Application Affidavit
TWDB-0201 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.aspindex.asp)

Item attached Yes X No []

Attach the Certificate of Secretary
TWDB-201B (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.aspindex.asp)

Item attached Yes X No []

12
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part C5”)

C8 List and attach copies of all draft and/or executed contracts for consultant services included in
the total project costs and if applicable whether those contracts were awarded according to
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) rules.
For further explanation see Part H — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Requirements

Awarded Using
Contract DBE rules Contract

Consultant Service Provided Attached (Y/N) (Y/N) Execution Date
Alan Plummer Project Engineering Y Y September 9,
Associates Inc. 2013
Specialize Public Financial Advisor Y N September 27,
Finance Inc. 2012
Bickerstaff Heath Bond Counsel Y N October 12, 2012
Delgado Acosta
LLP
C9 If the applicant is a Water Supply Corporation (WSC), attach copies of the following:

C10

a) Articles of Incorporation

b) Certificate of Incorporation from the Texas Secretary of State evidencing that the current
Articles of Incorporation are on file with the Secretary.

c) By-laws and any amendments

d) Certificate of Status (i.e. Certificate of Existence) from the Texas Secretary of State

e) Certificate of Account Status from the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (certifies that the
WSC is exempt from the franchise tax and that the WSC is in good standing)

Item a) attached Yes [] No X
Item b) attached Yes [ ] No X
Item c) attached Yes [ ] No X
Item d) attached Yes [ ] No X
Item e) attached Yes [] No X

If this project will result in: (a) an increase by the applicant in the use of groundwater, (b) drilling a
new water well, or (c) an increase by the applicant in use of surface water, then the applicant
must demonstrate that it has acquired — by contract, ownership or lease — the necessary property
rights, groundwater permits, and/or surface water rights sufficient for the project before funds can
be released for construction.

a) Does the applicant currently own all the property rights, groundwater permits and surface
water rights needed for this project?
No D

Yes []

If yes, please attach the completed, appropriate form.
a. WRD 208A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp) (Surface Water)
b. WRD 208B (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp (Groundwater)

Yes [ ]
13

NA X

Item a) attached No X
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part C5”)

Item b) attached Yes [] No X

14
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part C5”)

b) If all property rights, groundwater permits, and surface water rights, needed for this project
have not yet been acquired, identify the rights and/or permits that will need to be acquired
and provide the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have acquired such rights
and/or permits.

Entity from which the Expected
Type of Permit permit or right must Acquired by lease or acquisition Permit / Water
Water Right be acquired full ownership date Right ID No.
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

C11

C12

Does the applicant possess a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)? If yes, attach a
copy of the CCN and a service area map showing the areas to which it is allowed to provide
water or wastewater services.

Yes X No ] NA []
If yes, is item attached Yes X No []
If no, what is the status of the CCN? N/A
If the area to be served by the project, is within the service area of a municipality or other public

utility, has the applicant obtained an affidavit stating that the utility does not object to the
construction and operation of the services and facilities in its service area?

Yes [ No [ NA X

If yes, is item attached Yes [] No X

Has the applicant obtained all necessary land and easements for the project?
Yes [] No X

If yes, the applicant must complete and attach a site certificate.
(ED-101 - http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp

Item attached Yes [] No X
If no, the applicant is required to describe the land or easements that will need to be acquired

and provide the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have the land or easements
and if funding from TWDB is to be used for the acquisition.

15
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part C5”)

Description of
Land or
Easement
Permit

Entity from which the
permit or right must
be acquired

Acquired by lease or
full ownership

Expected
acquisition
date

To Be Funded by
TWDB (Yes/No)

Easements

Private

Full Ownership

5/1/2015

No

Lift Station
Sites

Private

Full Ownership

5/1/2015

No

C13

If the applicant is applying for CWSRF or DWSRF, the applicant must complete form

WRD 213 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp - Certification Regarding

Lobbying)

C14

Item attached

Yes X

No []

No X

NA []

Does the applicant currently contract for water or sewer services with another provider?

Yes []

Is the project intended to allow the applicant to provide or receive services to another entity?

Yes [ ]

No X

If yes, the applicant must provide, at minimum, the proposed agreement, contract, or other
documentation establishing the service relationship, with the final and binding agreements
provided prior to loan closing.

C15

Item attached

Yes []

Has the applicant been the subject of any enforcement action by the Texas Commission on

No X

Environmental Quality, the Environmental Protection Agency, or any other entity within the past
three years?
Yes []

If yes, attach a brief description of every enforcement action within the past three years and
action(s) to address requirements.

No X

Yes []

Item attached No X

All Economically Distressed Programs (EDAP) applicants must complete C16 through C18.

In accordance with TWDB Rules (31 TAC §363), an application for EDAP will not be considered until the
County has adopted and is enforcing the Model Subdivision Rules (MSRs) Tex. Water Code 16.343. If
the proposed project is within a municipality or its extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), or if the applicant is a
municipality, the municipality must also have adopted and be enforcing MSRs.

C16.

If financing is for a wastewater project, a copy of the resolution/ordinance establishing a
mandatory hookup policy is required.

No []

Item attached Yes X

If no, please explain: N/A

16
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part C5”)

C17. Texas Water Code §16.356 states “A political subdivision that receives financial assistance from
the economically distressed areas program under Subchapter K, Chapter 17, may not use any
revenue received from fees collected from a water supply or sewer service constructed in whole
or in part from funds from the economically distressed areas program account for purposes other
than utility purposes. The applicant acknowledges that they are aware of and will abide by the
statute.

Yes X No []
C18. Unless the applicant is a water supply corporation, the applicant must attach a copy of the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality order granting the applicant a designation as an
authorized agent for regulation of on-site septic sewage disposal systems or provide

documentation that the applicant is seeking such authority under Tex. Health & Safety Code
ch. 366, subch. C.

Item attached Yes [] No [] N/A X
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

Part D. Engineering Information

Applications for Planning, Acquisition, and Design funding (PAD) or Pre-Design Funding (PDF) require
the submittal of a preliminary engineering feasibility data. During the Planning phase, a complete
Engineering Feasibility Report (EFR) that complies with TWDB-0555 or TWDB-0556 will be required.

D1 A complete preliminary engineering feasibility data must include:
a) A description and purpose of the project, including existing facilities.
e Note: CWSRF and DWSRF must address issues scored in Intended Use Plan
submittal
b) A map of the service area and drawings as necessary to locate and describe the
project.
c) A project schedule including proposed timing of funding needs for phases of the project.
Schedule should include:
» Estimated loan closing date
» Estimated date to complete planning (environmental & engineering)
 Estimated number of proposed Construction Contracts.
» Estimated Construction start date for first contract.
e Estimated Construction end date for last contract.
* DWSRF applicants must complete a Projected Draw Schedule
(TWDB-1202 - http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp
d) A copy of current and future populations and projected water use or wastewater flows.
* Include entities to be served
e) A description of alternatives the applicant has considered (or to be considered during
detailed planning) and reasons for the selection of the project proposed.
f) If project is not PAD or PDF, attach an Engineering Feasibility Report that complies
with the requirements of:

o Water: TWDB-0555
(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)
Item attached Yes [ ] No [] NA X

¢ Wastewater: TWDB-0556
(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)
Item attached Yes X No [] NA [ ]

e EDAP - See D15

D2 Provide the most current itemized project cost estimate (include all costs and funding sources).
Utilize the budget format provided. If applying for pre-construction costs only (ie, P, A, D), then
itemize only the relevant portions in the attached budget template

Budget format TWDB-1201
(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)
Item attached Yes X No []
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

D3

D4

D5

D6

D7

D8

D9

D10

All Wastewater applicants must attach a completed Wastewater Project Information Form
WRD-253a (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes X No[] NA[]

All Water applicants must attach a completed Water Project Information Form
WRD-253d (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes [] No[ ] NAX
Has the applicant prepared Plans and Specifications for the proposed project?

Prepared P&S Yes [] No X
If yes, percent complete? N/A %

Do not send copies of the P&S. TWDB staff may request copies at a later date.

For wastewater projects that involve the construction of a new plant or the expansion of an
existing plant and/or associated facilities, attach evidence that an application for a new Texas
Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit or amendment to an existing permit related to
the proposed project has been filed with the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
(TCEQ). Final permit authorization must be obtained from the TCEQ before funds can be
released for construction activities.

Item attached Yes X No [] NA []

Comments: An application to amend the City’s existing wastewater land application permit to a
wastewater discharge permit was filed with TCEQ in May 2014. The application has been
determined to be administratively complete. The City is awaiting a draft permit.

If applying for CWSRF Equivalency or DWSRF, attach the Preaward Compliance Review
Report. EPA-4700-4 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes X No[] NAQ

If applying for CWSRF Equivalency or DWSREF, attach the Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension and Other Responsibility. SRF-404
(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached YesX No[] NA[]

If applying for CWSRF Equivalency or DWSRF, attach the Assurances - Construction
Programs. EPA-424D (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes X No [] NA []

If applying for assistance from either the Clean Water or Drinking Water State Revolving fund,
the Applicant must comply with the Davis-Bacon Act regarding prevailing wage rates. The
applicant acknowledges that they are aware of, and will abide by, the Davis-Bacon Act
requirements.
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

Yes X No []

Further information on the Davis-Bacon requirement is available through the TWDB Guidance
document, DB-0156 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

D11 If the application is for a CWSRF project, the applicant must be a Designated Management
Agency (DMA) for wastewater collection and treatment. Please complete and attach DMA
resolutions. WRD-210 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp) is an
example of this type of resolution.

Item attached Yes X No [] NA []

D12 List any major permits not identified elsewhere (C10 or E2) that are necessary for completion of
project. Also, list any more necessary minor permits that may involve particular difficulty due to
the nature of the proposed project.

Permit Issuing Entity Permit Acquired (Y/N)
Amendment to TCEQ N
Wastewater Permit No.
WQ0013321001
Chapter 210 TCEQ N

Authorization for Use of
Reclaimed Water

Additional requirements for EDAP applicants
D13  Preliminary EDAP Eligibility (31 TAC §363)

Required documentation:
a) Documented data for the project area is required.

» Documentation of inadequacy of water and/or wastewater services. (31 TAC §363)
Item attached Yes [] No X

» Documentation regarding the financial resources of the residential users in the EDAP
area. Census data or documentation regarding median household income should be
provided. (31 TAC §363)

Item attached Yes [ ] No X

» Documentation demonstrating existence of a residence in the project area prior to
June 1, 2005. This could include tax records of residence, dated aerial maps, or,
other documentation demonstrating existence of a residence. (31 TAC §363)

Item attached Yes [ ] No X
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part D5”)

D14 s the applicant requesting more than 50% grant funding for any component of planning,
acquisition, design or construction? Yes[ ] No X

If yes, has the Department of State Health Services issued a determination stating a

public health nuisance exists in the project area?
Yes[] No X

If no determination exists, provide documentation demonstrating a public health nuisance
exists in the project area.
Item attached Yes [] No X

(Photographs may be submitted, but they must be labeled with location and date when taken. If
the soil types are mentioned in the project area as an issue, include soil profile maps)

D15 s this project providing new service? YesX No[]
If yes, plats of the affected subdivisions must be attached.

Items attached Yes X No[]
(Property Boundaries are shown on Part D3 ~-WRD253a)

D16 EDAP applicants must attach an EDAP Facility Engineering Plan/Scope of Services report
that complies with the requirements of WRD-023A.
(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes [] No [] NA X
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part E5”)

Part E. Environmental Documentation

An applicant seeking commitment for a project under the Pre-design funding option must provide a
discussion of any known permitting, social, or environmental issues that may affect the evaluation of
project alternatives or implementation of the proposed project. Environmental review of the project may
be expedited if valid environmental determinations from another state or federal agency are available or
if work has already been completed by the applicant.

E1

E2

E3

Attach a discussion of any known permitting, social, or environmental issues that may affect the
evaluation of project alternatives or implementation of the proposed project; e.g. these could
include rate increases, potential impacts to known cultural resources, potential impacts to waters
of the U.S. or to protected species, etc.

Item attached Yes [] No X

Any Environmental Permits, Registrations, Licenses, Authorizations necessary for the project and
the status of each. E.g.:

* Endangered species act, Section 10A take permit,
» Clean Water Act Section 404-individual permit or Rivers and Harbors Section 10 permit

Permit Issuing Entity Permit Acquired (Y/N)

N/A N/A N/A

Comments: N/A

Is the project potentially eligible for a Categorical Exclusion (CE) because it involves only minor
rehabilitation or the functional replacement of existing equipment?

Yes [] No X
If yes, attach documentation showing that the project may be eligible for a CE.

Item attached Yes [ ] No X
For further explanation see Section J — Guidance
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part E5”)

E4

ES

If the project is not eligible for a CE, has the applicant prepared an Environmental Assessment
(EA) or Environmental information Document (EID) in accordance with 31 TAC 363, 31 TAC 371
or 31 TAC 375, of the TWDB's rules and TWDB Instructions? Or has an Environmental Impact
Statement (EIS) been prepared by the applicant in coordination with an authorized state or
federal agency for this project?

Yes X No []

Do not send copies of the EA, EIS, or EID. TWDB staff may request copies at a later date.

For further explanation see Section J — Guidance

Has a CE, a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI), a Record of Decision (ROD), or any other
environmental determination been issued for this project by the TWDB or another authorized
state or federal agency within the last five years?

Yes [ ] No X

Comment: It is anticipated the Texas Water Development Board will affirm the EID on October 2,
2014.

If yes, attach a complete copy of the CE, FONSI, ROD, or other environmental determination
and all supporting documents (i.e. EID or EA, with all agency consultation correspondence).

Item(s) attached Yes [ ] No X
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part F5”)

Part F. Planning and Water Conservation Plan

F1

F2

F3

F4

If the assistance requested is more than $500,000 a Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is required.
The WCP cannot be more than five years old and must have been adopted by the applicant.
Has the applicant adopted a Board-approved WCP ?

Yes X No [ NA [ (Requestis less than $500,000)

If yes, date of applicant's WCP Adoption: The City of Wimberley Water Conservation
Ordinance was adopted on February 5, 2009 while its companion Drought contingency &
Emergency Water Demand Management Plan of the Wimberley Water Supply
Corporation was adopted on December 15, 2011.

If no, attach a copy of a draft Water Conservation Plan and Drought Contingency Plan
prepared in accordance with TWDB Guidance.
TWDB-1968 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)
and Utility Profile TWDB-1965
(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Items attached Yes X No []

Does the applicant provide retail water services?
Yes [] No X

If yes, complete item F3 and F4.

Has the applicant submitted to the TWDB the annual water use survey of groundwater and
surface water for the last three years?
Yes [ ] No X

If No, please download survey forms and attach a copy of the completed water use surveys to

the application.

(http://www.twdb.texas.gov/waterplanning/waterusesurvey/survey/printable.asp)
Item attached Yes [] No X (N/A)

If the applicant is a retail public utility that provides potable water, has the applicant submitted a

most recently required water loss audit to the TWDB?

Yes [] No X
If No, and if applying for a water supply project, please complete the online TWDB Water Audit
worksheet found at http://www.twdb.texas.gov./conservation/municipal/waterloss/ and attach a
copy to the application.
Item attached Yes [ ] No [] NA X

Note:
 |f the applicant will utilize the project financed by the TWDB to furnish services to another
entity that in turn will furnish services to the ultimate consumer, the requirements for the
WCP may be met through contractual agreements between the applicant and the other
entity providing for establishment of a water conservation plan. The provision requiring a
WCP shall be included in the contract at the earliest of the original execution, renewal or
substantial amendment of that contract, or by other appropriate measures.
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e An approvable plan must be submitted before a commitment for funding can be received,
but an approved plan must be adopted by the applicant before any funds can be
released.

 In order to be eligible for funding, a proposed water project has to be consistent with the
Regional and State Water Plans.
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part G5”)

Part G. Documentation of “Green” Projects and Project Components
CWSRF and DWSRF Applicants Only

All Drinking Water and Clean Water applicants must complete this section if green benefits are
all, or a substantial part, of the project (more than an incidental benefit). Project means the entire
project or a component of the project.This section is required so that the TWDB can determine whether
the project qualifies as “green” as pursuant to Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Guidance.

A project (or project component) is “green” if the primary purpose qualifies under EPA rules as one of the
following:

a. Green Infrastructure,

b. Water Efficiency-related,

c. Energy Efficiency-related, or
d. Environmentally Innovative.

You must use the Green Project Reserve guidance to complete this section. Current guidance can be
found at: Green Project Reserve: Guidance for determining project eligibility
TWDB-0161 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

G1 Does your project or a component of your project qualify as Green, per EPA guidance?
Yes X No

If Yes, Please complete the remainder of Section G.

G2. Type of Green Project
X Water [] Energy [] Green [J Environmentally
Efficiency Efficiency Infrastructure Innovative

G3 The correct worksheets must be completed.
Green Project Reserve: CWSRF Green Project Worksheets
TWDB-0162 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Green Project Reserve: DWSRF Green Project Worksheets
TWDB-0163 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

TWDB will make the final determination whether your project (or project component) meets
federal criteria as “green”. You may be required to submit a business case, utilizing the Green
guidance

Correct worksheets attached Yes X No [] NA []
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Please label each attachment with the number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part H5”)

Part H. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Requirements
CWSRF and DWSRF Applicants Only

All Drinking Water and Clean Water Equivalency applicants must complete this section.

All project costs funded by the TWDB through DWSRF or CWSRF Equivalency must comply with the
federal, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program rules and requirements. The federal DBE
program requires a good faith effort to contract with DBE’s for all procurements including: professional
and non-professional consulting services, equipment, supplies and construction to be funded by federal
equivalency dollars. Guidance and forms are found at

TWDB-0210 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

H1 At a minimum, you must complete and attach the Applicant Affirmative Steps
Certification and Goals. This form is required to obtain a financial assistance commitment.
TWDB-0215 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes X No []

H2 If you have already solicited contractors, complete and attach the Affirmative Steps
Solicitation Report.
TWDB-216 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes [] No [] NA X

H 3  All Contractors that have been awarded will need to complete and attach the Prime
Contractor Affirmative Steps Certification and Goals. This form must be submitted for
review prior to loan closing and release of funds.

TWDB-217 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financiall/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes [] No [] NA X

H4  If you have awarded contracts to contractors, complete and attach the Loan/Grant
Participation Summary. This form must be submitted for review prior to loan closing and
release of funds.

TWDB-0373 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp)

Item attached Yes [ ] No [] NA X
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Wimberley, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Wimberley, Texas
(the “City™) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-lype activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis section be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements
and supplemental schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and supplemental schedules are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all
material respects. in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 27,
2013 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

%«%m, (lak & &n«/_—mgy_, .

Singleton, Clark & Company, PC
Austin, Texas

December 27, 2013



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Wimberley, Texas, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2013.

Financial Highlights

* The assets of the City of Wimberley, Texas exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $11,177,535 (net position). Of this amount, $1,395,453 represents
unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

* The City of Wimberley, Texas’s total net position increased by $282,389 primarily due to the
net change in the Blue Hole Park Fund and Capital Projects Fund related to park revenues and
grant revenue, respectively.

* At the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Wimberley. Texas's governmental funds
reported combined fund balances of $1,321,531, an increase of $410,561 in comparison with the
prior year. The City did not report any governmental fund unassigned fund balances as of year-
end meaning all fund balances are committed or restricted for specific purposes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of
Wimberley, Texas’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to
financial statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional
detail to support the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial stutements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Wimberley, Texas’s finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).



Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Wimberley, Texas
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmentual activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government,
public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation. The business-type activity of the City is
the operation of a wastewater utility.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-13 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A find is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Wimberley,
Texas, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Wimberley, Texas can
be divided into two categories. governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental finds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Wimberley, Texas maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the Blue Hole Park Fund which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other three governmental funds are combined into a single
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided
in the form of combining statements in the combining and individual -fund statements and schedules
section of this report.

The City of Wimberley, Texas adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-18 of this report.



Proprietary Funds. The City of Wimberley, Texas has the option of maintaining two different types of
proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-tvpe
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its
wastewater utility operation. /nternal service finds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among a City's functions. The City is not currently utilizing an internal service
fund. Because the services provided by internal service funds predominantly benefit governmental rather
than business-type functions, they are usually included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the wastewater utility,
which is considered to be a major fund of the City of Wimberley, Texas. Conversely, when internal
service funds are utilized, they are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds are then provided in the form of
combining statements in the combining and individual fund statements and schedules section of this
report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary o acquire
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 22-37 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents required supplementary information concerning the City’s pension participation. Required
supplementary information can be found on page 38 of this report. The combining statements referred to
earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information on pensions.

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 40-41 of this report.
Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the City of Wimberley, Texas, assets exceeded liabilities by $11.177,535 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year.



City of Wimberley, Texas's Net Position

Business- Business-
Governmental Governmental Type Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
ASSETS
Current & other assets § 1454870 $ 995741 $§ 459,129 $ 759.607 $ 57.682 $§ 701,925
Capital asscts 9,714,801 9,911,365 (196.564) 214,826 220,922 (6.096)
Total assets 11,169.671 10,907.106 262.565 974,433 278,604 695,829
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 133,339 102,812 30,527 12,639 35,195 (22.556)
Long-term liabilities 18.034 - 18,034 802.557 152,557 650.000
Total liabilities 151.373 102.812 48,561 815,196 187,752 627,444
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital
assets 9,714,801 9,911.365 (196,564) 50,462 48,052 2,410
Restricted 5.012 11,207 (6.195) - - -
Unrestricted 1,413,402 881,722 531,680 108,775 42.800 65,975

Total net position $11,133215 $10,804294 § 328921 $ 159237 $ 90,852 $  68.385

By far, the largest portion of the City of Wimberley, Texas’s net position (88% overall), and respectively
87% and 40% for governmental activities and business-type activities, reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings. machinery, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure), less any related
outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide a
variety of services (o its citizens. Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt. it should be noted that the resources
used to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Wimberley, Texas's net position less than (1%) represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $1,395,453 is
unrestricted and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all reported categories
of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-
type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.



The City of Wimberley, Texas’s overall net position increased by $282,389 from the prior fiscal year, the
reasons for this overall increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental activities and
business-type activities.

Governmental Activities. During the current fiscal year. net position for governmental activities
increased $214,004 from the prior fiscal year for an ending balance of $11,018,298. While the current
recession certainly had an impact on the City of Wimberley, Texas, management was able to take various
actions (e.g., increasing rates for certain revenue sources, delaying certain nonrecurring expenses,
reducing expenses related to non-essential ongoing programs in the culture and recreation function) that
neutralized its effect on governmental activities. The increase in the overall net position of governmental
aclivities is primarily the result of Blue Hole Park revenues and Capital Projects Fund grant revenue.

Business-type Activities. For the City of Wimberley, Texas’s business-type activities, the results for the
current fiscal year were positive in that overall net position increased to reach an ending balance of
$159,237. The total increase in net position for business-type activities was $68,385 or 75% from the
prior fiscal year.

City of Wimberley, Texas’s Changes in Net Position

Business- Business-
Governmental Governmental Type Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities
2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change

REVENUES
Program Revenues:

Charges for services $ 436317 $§ 320,705 $ 115612 $ 171441 $ 124,155 $ 47.286

Capital grants and contributions 116,353 90,469 25,884 - - -
General Revenues:

Other taxes 650,914 875,962 (225,048) - - -

Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs 223.974 650,215 (426,241) - . _

Other 172,194 32,843 139.351 48 7 41
Total revenue 1,484,835 1,970,194 (485,359) 171,489 124.162 47327
EXPENSES

General government 485.793 392,876 92917 - - -

Public safety ) 125,744 97,639 28,105 - - -

Highways and streets 275.413 232,036 43,377 - - -

Culture and recreation 383.881 286,352 97,529 - - -

Interest on long-term debt - - - 10,245 8,203 2,042

Wastewater operations - - - 92,859 56,357 36,502
Total expenses 1,270.831 1,008,903 261,928 103,104 64.560 38,544
ISR I et B it 214,004 961290  (747.286) 68,385 59,602 8,783
before transfers
Transfers - - - - 31,250 (31,250)
Increase (decrease) in net position 214,004 961,290 (747,286) 68,385 90,852 (22.467)
Net position - beginning 10,804,294 9,843,003 961,291 90,852 - 90,852
Net position - ending $11,018,298 $10.804294 $ 214,004 $ 159237 $ 90,852 $ 68,385




Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Wimberley, Texas uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Govermmental Funds. The focus of the City of Wimberley, Texas's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City of Wimberley. Texas’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for discretionary use as
they represent the portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose
by either an external party, the City of Wimberley, Texas itself, or a group or individual that has been
delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the City of Wimberley, Texas’s
Council.

At September 30, 2013, the City of Wimberley, Texas's governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $1,321,531, an increase of $410,561 in comparison with the prior year. The fund balance is
either restricted or committed to indicate that it is 1) restricted for particular purposes ($5,012) and 2)
committed for particular purposes ($1,316,519).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Wimberley, Texas. At the end of the current
fiscal year, committed fund balance of the general fund was $1,039.666 which includes an increase of
$231,522 from prior year balance of $808,144. The City currently commits its entire General Fund fund
balance according to the formula 40% for public works, 35% for wastewater improvements, and 25%
future grant matches.

The fund balance of the City of Wimberley. Texas’s General Fund increased by $231,522 during the
current fiscal year. As discussed earlier in connection with governmental activities, the increase was due
primarily to actual expenditures being significantly less than appropriated for the year.

The Blue Hole Park Fund, a major fund, had a $116,196 increase in fund balance during the current fiscal
year which put the overall fund balance to end the year at $205,533. The City commits the fund’s entire
ending fund balance to the park and park operations.

In addition to the City’s two major governmental funds, the City maintains three special revenue funds-
the Capital Projects Fund, the Municipal Court Fund, and the Sidewalks Donations Fund. These separate
funds are used to segregate financial transactions of the activities accounted for in those funds.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Wimberley, Texas’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net
position of the Wastewater Service at the end of the year was $108,775 while the amount of net
investment in capital assets was $50.462. The total growth in net position was $68,385 from prior year
balance of $90,852. The fund ended the year with a net position of $159,237.



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Original budget compared to final budget. During the year there was no need for any significant
amendments to increase either the original estimated revenues or original budgeted appropriations.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Wimberley, Texas’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of September 20, 2013, amounts to $9.714,801 and $214,826 respectively (net
of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery,
equipment, vehicles, park facilities, roads, highways, bridges, and the wastewater treatment plant. The
total increase in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities for the current fiscal year

was approximately 1.2% and 0% respectively.

City of Wimberley, Texas’s Capital Assets

Land
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress
Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Buildings and improvements
Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Governmental ~ Governmental
Activities Activities
2013 2012 Change
$ 3,391,499 $ 3391499 § -
2,717.303 2,653,897 63,406
3.928,783 200,253 3,728,530
663,227 644,491 18,736
10,736 3,693,874 (3,683,138)
10,711,548 10,584,014 127,534
(996,747) (672,649) (324,098)
$ 9,714,801 $ 9,911,365 $ (196,564)
Business-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities
2013 2012 Change
$ - ) 223970 §$ -
- 223,970 (223,970)
N (3,048) 3,048
S - S 220922 § (220,922)

Additional information on the City of Wimberley, Texas’s capital assets can be found in Note IV.C on

pages 31-32 of this report.
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Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Wimberley, Texas had notes payable
outstanding of $802,557. Of this amount. $152.557 relates to the City’s wastewater assets executed
during fiscal year 2011/2012 and the remaining $650.000 relates to tax surplus revenue notes issued
during the current fiscal year. The $650,000 in new notes payable related to the City’s wastewater
expansion were issued through the Texas Water Development Board and are guaranteed by the federal
government.

City of Wimberley, Texas Outstanding Debt

Business-Type  Business-Type

Activities Activities
2013 2012 Change
Notes Payable S 802557 $ 172870 $ 629,687
Total $ 802,557 $ 172,870 § 629,687

During the year, the City of Wimberley, Texas’s total debt increased by $629.687 (364 percent). The
reason for the increase was that during the year the City repaid $20.313 related to its existing notes
payable and issued $650,000 in new notes payable.

Additional information on the City of Wimberley. Texas‘s long-term debt can be found in Note IV.F on
pages 35-36 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2013/2014
budget and fees to be charged. The City's 2013/2014 General Fund budget is $1.028,550. And. it
represents an increase of less than 1% over the adopted budget for the previous fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Wimberley, Texas’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
the City of Wimberley, Texas’s City Administrator, Don Ferguson, P. O. Box 2027, Wimberley. Texas
78676 or at (512) 847-0025.



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EXHIBIT A-1
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,160,854 § 108343 § 1,269,197
Investments - current 176,970 - 176,970
Accounts receivable, net 66,449 13,071 79,520
Intergovemmental receivable 50,597 - 50,597
Restricted cash - 638,193 638,193
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 3,391,499 - 3,391,499
Construction in progress 10,736 - 10,736
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 6,400,441 - 6,400,441
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 245645 - 245,645
Infrastructure 663,227 223,970 887,197
Accumulated depreciation (996,747) (9.144) (1,005,891)
Total Assets 11,169,671 974,433 12,144,104
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 116,408 5,128 121,536
Accrued salaries and benefits 16,931 - 16,931
Accrued interest payable - 7,511 7,511
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year - 111,656 111,656
Due in more than one year 18.034 690,901 708,935
Total Liabilities 151,373 815,196 966,569
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 9,714,801 50,462 9,765,263
Restricted for capital projects 5,012 - 5.012
Unrestricted 1,413,402 108,775 1,522,177
Total Net Position $ 11133215 § 159,237  § 11,292,452

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Program Revenues
Capital
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs: Expenses Services Contributions
Primary Government:
Govemnmental activities:
General govermnment 3 485793 § 99475 § -
Public safety 125,744 17,487 -
Highways and streets 275413 - -
Culture and recreation 383,881 319,355 116,353
Total Governmental Activities: 1,270,831 436,317 116,353
Business-type activities:
Wastewater Service 103,104 171,441 -
Total Business-Type Activities: 103,104 171,441 -
Total primary government § 1373935 § 607,758 § 116,353

General Revenues:
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues and trans fers
Change in Net Position

Net Assets -- Beginning
Net Assets — Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-1

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Govermnment

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activites Total

$  (386,318) $ - $  (386,318)
(108,257) - (108,257)
(275,413) - (275,413)
51,827 - 51.827
(718,161) - (718,161)

- 68,337 68,337

- 68,337 68.337
(718,161) 68,337 (649,824)
650,914 - 650,914
223,974 - 223974
910 48 958

56,367 - 56,367
932,165 48 932,213
328921 68,385 397,306
10,804,294 90,852 10,895,146

$ 11133215 § 159,237 § 11,292452
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FUND BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



EXHIBIT C-1

CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Total Total
General Blue Hole Nonmajor ~ Govemnmental
Fund Park Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 866,899 $ 211,950 $ 82,005 § 1,160,854
Investments - current 176,970 - - 176.970
Accounts receivable 73,495 - - 73,495
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable (7,046) - - (7,046)
Intergovernmental receivable 50,597 - - 50,597
Due from other funds 838 - - 838
Total assets $ 1161,753 § 211,950 § 82,005 $ 1,455,708
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 107,600 $ 3973 § 4835 % 116,408
Accrued salaries and benefits 14,487 2,444 - 16,931
Due to other funds - - 838 38
Total Liabilities 122,087 6,417 5.673 134,177
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted:
Fund balance - restricted for capital projects - - 5,012 5,012
Committed:
Fund balance - committed for public works 415,866 - - 415,866
Fund balance - committed for ww improvements 259917 - - 259,917
Fund balance - committed for grant matches 363,883 - - 363,883
Fund balance - committed for capital projects - - 67.545 67,545
Fund balance - committed for parks - 205,533 - 205,333
Fund balance - committed for municipal court - - 3775 3,775
Total Fund Balances 1,039,666 205,533 76,332 1,321,531
Total liabilities, def. inflows, and fund balances $ 1,161,753 $ 211,950 §$ 82,005 $ 1,455,708

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT C-IR
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds S 1,321,531

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 9,714,801

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (18,034)

Net position of governmental activities $ 11,018,298

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT C-2
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total Total
General Blue Hole Nonmajor Governmental
Fund Park Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Sales taxes 3 650,914 $ - $ - $ 650,914
Franchise taxes 223,974 - - 223,974
Licenses and permits 97,430 - - 97,430
Intergovemmental revenues - 55,018 61,335 116,353
Charges for services 53,056 266,299 2,045 321,400
Fines 17,487 - - 17,487
Investment eamings 806 81 23 910
Miscellaneous revenue 21,144 35223 - 56,367
Total revenues 1,064,811 356,621 63,403 1,484,835
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 361,348 - 560 361,908
Public safety 93,676 - - 93,676
Highways and streets 205,175 - - 205,175
Culture and recreation 88,282 197,699 - 285,981
Capital outlay 84,808 4,205 38,521 127,534
Total expenditures 833,289 201,904 39,081 1,074,274
Excess (deficiency) of rev. over expenditures 231,522 154,717 24,322 410,561
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 38,521 38,521
Transfers out - (38.521) - (38,521)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (38,521) 38,521 -
Net Change in Fund Balance 231,522 116,196 62,843 410,561
Fund Balance - Beginning 808,144 89,337 13,489 910,970
Fund Balance - Ending $ 1039666 $ 205,533 § 76,332 $§ 1,321,531

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT C-2R
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 410,561

Govemnental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period. (196,564)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental
funds report the efiect premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these diflerences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items. 7

$ 214,004

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Sales taxes $ 585,000 § 645,000 $ 650914 $ 5914
Franchise taxes 252,000 241,000 223,974 (17,026)
Licenses and permits 84,500 101,000 97,430 (3,570)
Charges for services 59,200 56,200 53,056 (3,144)
Fines 30,000 20,000 17,487 2,513)
Investment eamnings 1,500 1,000 806 (194)
Miscellaneous revenue 12,500 9,500 21,144 11,644
Total revenues 1,024,700 1,073,700 1.064,811 (8,889)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 470,995 472,470 361,348 11,122
Public safety 103,782 105,962 93,676 12,286
Highways and streets 248,985 284,706 205,175 79,531
Culture and recreation 141,445 123,023 88,282 34,741
Capital outlay 52,493 87,539 84,808 2,731
Total Expenditures 1,017,700 1,073,700 833,289 240,411
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 7,000 - 231,522 231,522
over expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances 7,000 - 231,522 231,522
Fund balance - beginning 808,144 808.144 808,144 -
Fund balance - ending $ 8I5I44 § 808,144 $ 1039666 $ 231,522

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Restricted cash

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Notes payable - current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

19

EXHIBIT D-1

Business-Type
Activities
Wastewater
Service

$ 108,343
13,071
638,193

759,607

223970
(9,144)

214,826

974,433

5,128
7,511
111,656

124,295

690,901

690,901
815,196

50,462
108,775



EXHIBIT D-2
CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Business-Type

Activities
Wastewater
Service
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Wastewater service $ 171,441
Total operating revenues 171,441
Operating expenses:
Purchased prof. and technical services 66,054
Other operating expenses 8,902
Depreciation 6,096
Total operating expenses 81,052
Operating income (loss) 90,389
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Investment eamings 48
Debt issuance costs (11,807)
Interest expense (10,245)
Total nonoper. revenues (expenses) (22,004)
Change in net position 68,385

Net position-beginning 90,852
Net position-ending S 159,237

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Business-Type

Activities
Wastewater
Service
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers S 174,359
Payments to suppliers and service providers (68,297)
Payments to employees for other operating (8.902)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 97,160
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on capital debt (20,313)
Interest paid on capital debt (10,245)

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (30,558)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on investments 48
Net cash provided by investing activities 48
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 66,650
Cash and cash equivalents-beginning 41,693
Cash and cash equivalents-ending $ 108,343

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used for)

operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 90,389
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

(used for) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 6,096
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 2,918
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (1,551
(Decrease) increase in accrued liabilities (692)
Total adjustments . ’ 6,771
Net cash provided by (uséd for) operating activities $ 97,160

Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities:

Contributions of capital assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of'this statement.

EXHIBIT D-3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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I

CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2013

Summary of significant accounting policies
A. Description of government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support.

B. Reporting entity

Wimberley, Texas was incorporated on May 5, 2000 as the “Village of Wimberley™ under the
provisions of the State of Texas. In June 2008, the Village of Wimberley officially changed its name
to the “City of Wimberley™ (hereafier the “City™). The City, a general law municipality, operates as a
Mayor/Council form of government and the Mayor is the executive officer of the City. With few
exceptions, all powers of the City are vested in the Mayor and the elected five member Council which
enacts local legislation, adopts budgets, determines policies, and appoints the City Administrator,
Attorney, and the Municipal Court Judge. The Mayor and Council also are primarily responsible for
fiscal matters. The City provides the following services-public safety, street maintenance, recreation
programs, community development, public improvements, and general administrative services.

C. Basis of presentation — government-wide financial statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
The governimental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service
funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary tunds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

D. Basis of presentation — fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its
fiduciary funds and blended component units. The emphasis of fund financial statements is-on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental
and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The park fund accounts for the operation of the City's Blue Hole Park.

[§9}
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The government reports the following major enterprise funds:

The wastewater service fund accounts for the activities of the utility. The fund operates the
wastewater system for the City.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of the government’s major
capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds.

The special revenue funds, Municipal Court Fund and Sidewalks Donations Fund, account for
specific activities the City accounts for separate {rom the general fund. The Municipal Court
Fund is used to account for the proceeds of revenue sources which are legally restricted to
expenditures for the court. And, the Sidewalks Donations Fund is used to account for donations
made to the City to contribute to the costs related to complete the sidewalk project in the City’s
downtown area along Ranch Road 2325.

During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds or advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds
included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated
so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.
Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds)
are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type
activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental
activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are
eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

E. Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as
current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of
transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Sales taxes, franchise taxes. licenses. and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any
time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for
this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as
" revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements
have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this
revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the government.

Proprietary activities are reported using the economic resources measurement Jocus and the accrual
basis of accounting.

F. Budgetary information
1. Budgetary basis of accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
for the City’s general fund. Other City funds do not have appropriated budgets since other means
control the use of these resources (e.g., grant awards and endowment requirements) and
sometimes span a period of more than one fiscal year.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. The government’s department
heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations
between departments require the approval of the council. The legal level of budgetary control
(i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department
level.

Appropriations in all budgeted funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year even if they have related
encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for
goods or services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts, and commitments). Encumbrance accounting is
utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to
facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and encumbrances lapse at
year end, valid outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance under the executory
contract is expected in the next year) are re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent
year's budget pursuant to state regulations.
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2. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended September 30, 2013, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any of the
City’s funds.

G. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position/fund balance
1. Cash and cash equivalents

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

2. Investments

. Investments for the government are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market
prices) except for positions in Local Government Investment Pools, like TexPool, when
applicable. In accordance with state law, these investment pools operate in conformity with all of
the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) Rule 2a7 as promulgated
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Accordingly, the pools qualify as 2a7-
like pools and are reported at the net asset value per share (which approximates fair value) even
though it is calculated using the amortized cost method.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

The City does not report inventories of supplies or consumable items due to the unused amount of
these items on hand at any given time being deemed immaterial. The cost of prepaid items is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

4. Capital assets

Capital assets which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1.000 and an estimated
useful life of more than one year.

As the government constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, including
infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported value
excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to
capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or increase its estimated
useful life. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
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Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Capital asset classes Lives
Buildings and improvements 20-40
Machinery and equipment 5
Vehicles 5
Infrastructure 20-40

5. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as‘an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government
currently does not have any financial transactions that qualify for reporting in this category. In
addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government currently
does not have any financial transactions that qualify for reporting in this category.

6. Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to
report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy 1o consider restricted —
net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

7. Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in
the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government's policy to consider
restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted
fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the
same purpose, commilted fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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8. Fund balance policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance). The committed fund balance classification
includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of
the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest
level of decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior
to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the
ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to
remove or revise the limitation. Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended
1o be used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as
committed. The council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance
lo cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's
appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other
words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.
Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a
commitment.

H. Revenues and expenditures/expenses
1. Program revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes,
including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

2. Property taxes

Currently, the City does not assess ad valorerh property taxes for either maintenance and
operations or-interest and sinking.

3. Compensated absences
Vacation .

The government’s policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits,
which are eligible for payment upon separation from government service. The liability for such
leave is reported as incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A
liability for those amounts is recorded in the governmental funds only if the liability has matured
as a result of employee resignations or retirements. The liability for compensated absences
includes salary-related benefits, where applicable.
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Sick Leave

Accumulated sick leave lapses when employees leave the employment of the government and,
upon separation from service, no monetary obligation exists.

4. Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the water fund and electric fund are charges to customers for sales
and services. The water fund also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap lees intended
to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

II. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balunce — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government- wide
statement of net position. Items shown in summary form on that reconciliation are provided in detail
below.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and. therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this amount are as

follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 3391499

Construction in progress - ) 10,736
Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 2,717.303

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 3,928,783

Infrastructure 663,227

Accumulated depreciation (996,747)

Net adjustment to increase firnd balance - 10tal governmental funds to arrive
at nef position - governmental activities $ 9,714,801
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Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details
of this amount are as follows:

Compensated absences $ 18,034

Net adjustment to reduce find balance - total governmental funds to arrive at
net position - governmental activities $ 18,034

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement
of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between ner changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. Items
shown in summary form on that reconciliation are provided in detail below.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However. in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.” The details of this amount are as
follows:

Capital outlay $ 127,534

Depreciation expense (324,098)
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance - total governmental

Junds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities S (196,564)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds. while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statements of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.™ The details of this amount are as follows:

Principal repay ments:
Change in compensated absences $ 7

Net adjustment to decrease changes in fund balances - total governmental
JSunds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 7
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Stewardship, compliance and accountability

A. Violations of legal or contractual provisions

No violations of legal or contractual provisions were noted during the current year.

B. Deficit fund equity

For the year ended September 30, 2013 there were no funds reported with deficit fund equity.
Detailed notes on all activities and funds

A. Cash deposits with financial institutions

Custodial credit risk-deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The government does have a deposit
policy for custodial credit risk. As of September 30, 2013, the government’s bank balance was
$1,273.855 and $0 of that amount was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was insured and/or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging or financial institution’s trust department or agent.

B. Investments

The City currently holds investments with TexPool, the largest local government investment pool in
the State of Texas. TexPool has a credit rating of AAAm from Standard &Poor’s Financial Services.
Local government investment pools in this rating category meet the highest standards for credit
quality. conservative investment policies, and safety of principal. TexPool’s investments are governed
by the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. State
statutes authorize the government to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, and government investment pools.

As of September 30, 2013, the government had the following investments:

Maturity Time in

Years
Less t_han
Investment Type 1
Investment Pools-TexPool $ 176,970
Total Investments 3 176,970
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Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the government manages its exposure 10
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less
than ten months.

Credit risk. State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two
ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). It is the
government’s policy to limit its investments in these investment types to the top rating issued by
NRSROs. As of June 30, 2022, the government’s investment in the State Treasurer’s investment pool
was rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service. The government’s
investments in commercial paper were rated Al by Standard & Poor’s, F-1 by Fitch Ratings, and P-]
by Moody’s Investor’s Service. The government’s investments in corporate bonds were rated AAA
by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings, and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service.

Concentration of credit risk. The government’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in
any one issuer that is in excess of 5 percent of the government’s total investments. This restriction
however does not apply to government investment pools due to the low risk nature of this type of
investment.

Custodial credit risk-investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of

the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

C. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

Balance Balance
10/112 Increases Decreases Adjustments 9/30/13
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure $ 223970 - - - $ 223,970
Total capital assets, being depreciated 223.970 - - L 223,970
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (3,048) (6,096) - - (9,144)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,048) (6,096) - - (9.144)
Total capital assets being depreciated. net 220,922 (6,096) - - 214,826
Business-ty pe activities capital assets, net $ 220922 $§ (6.096) S = S - $ 214,826
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Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
107112 Increases Decreases  Adjustments 9/30/13
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $3391499 § - $ - $ - $3,391,499
Construction-in-progress 3,693,874 - - (3,683,138) 10,736
Total capital assets, not being depreciated  7.085,373 - - (3,683,138) 3,402,235
Capital assets. being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 2,653.897 63406 - - 2,717,303
Machinery. equipment, and vehicles 200,253 45,392 - 3.683.138 3,928,783
Infrastructure 644,491 18.736 - - 663,227
Total capital assets. being depreciated 3,498,641 127,534 - 3.683,138 7.309,313
L.ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (422.964) {264,810) - - (687,774)
Machinery. equipment, and vehicles (142,856) (26,127) - - (168.983)
Infrastructure (106,829) (33,161) - - (139,990)
Total accumulated depreciation (672,649) (324.098) - - (996,747)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2.825.992 (196,564) - 3.683.138 6,312,566
Governmental activities capital assets, net $9,911,365 $ (196.364) S - S - $9.714,801

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the governmental activities of the
primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 123,892
Public safety 32,068
Highway's and streets 70,238
Culture and recreation 97,900 2
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 324,098
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D. Pension obligations

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a nontraditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide, Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that
have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the governing statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed
explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the
System. This report may be obtained from TMRS® website at www.TMRS.com.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the
state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2012 Plan Year 2013
Employee Deposit Rate 5% 5%
Matching Ratio (City to Employee) 1to ] ltol
Years Required for Vesting 5 5
Service Retirement Eligibility
(Expressed as Age/Years of Service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 0%, 0%.
Annuity increase (1o retirees) : 0% of CPI 0% of CPI

Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by
the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal
cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level
percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an
active member’s projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the
unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the
- normal cost and prior services contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of
annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credit and Annuity Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the
City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for
budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis
for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect.
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The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2013 were determined as part of the December 2010
and 2011 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December
31, 2012, also follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit | Projected Unit | Projected Unit
Credit Credit Credit
Amortization Method Level % of Level % of Level % of
Payroll Payroll Payroll
GASB 25 Equivalent Single 21.9 years: 21.1 years; 19.9 years;
Amortization Period closed period | closed period | closed period
Amortization Period for New 11 years 12 years 13 years
Gains/Losses
Asset Valuation Method 10-year 10-year 10-year
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed
Market Market Market
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return* 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Projected Salary Increases* |varies by age and|varies by age and|varies by age and
service service service
*Includes Inflation at Cost 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
of Living Adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The funded status as of September 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial UAALasa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Funded AAL Covered  of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (H
’ @7k | (b)-(@ ) /(e)
12/312012 | § 124857 | $§ 148,045| 843% |$ 23,188 |$ 319,919 7.2%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of
benefits.

E. Risk management

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. During the year, the City purchased
commercial insurance to cover general liabilities. There were no significant reductions in coverage in
the past fiscal year and no settlements exceeding insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal
years.
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F. Long-Term Liabilitics

Tax Notes and Other Notes Payable

The government issues tax notes or obtains regular notes payable financing arrangements from banks
to provide funds for the acquisition of equipment, minor capital projects, or to provide advance
funding for larger capital projects where it is anticipated that larger debt instruments will be issued in
the future. Tax notes and regular notes payable are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and
credit of the government. These debt instruments are generally repaid in equal installments of
principal and interest over a period of 3 to 10 years.

Details of long-term debt obligations outstanding at September 30, 2013 are as follows:

Business-type Activities:

Interest
Issue  Original Rates to Final Outstanding
Type Date  Borrowing  Maturity Maturity 9/30/13
Notes Payable:
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 2012 $172,870 5.00% 2019 $ 152,557
Comb. Taxand Surplus Rev. Ant. Notes, Series 2013 2013 650,000 .44%-2.36% 2020 650,000
Total Notes Payable $ 802,557

Changes in long-term liabilities

Changes in the government's long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2013 are as
follows:

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance

Description 10/1/12 Additions  Deletions 9/30/13
Compensated absences . $ 18,041 § - $ (7) $ 18,034
Govemnmental activities long-term liabilities $ 18,041 § - $ (7) $ 18.034

For compensated absences, the general fund normally liquidates 100 percent of the liability when it
becomes due.

Business-type Activities:

Balance Balance Due in
Description 10/1/12 Additions  Deletions 9/30/13 One Year
Notes payable $ 172870 § 650,000 $ (20313) $-802,557 $ 111,656

Business-type activities long-term liabilities _$ 172,870 § 650,000 § (20,313) $ 802,557 $ 111,656
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The debt service requirements for the government’s tax notes and notes payable are as follows:
Business-type Activities:

Business-Type Activities

Tax Notes Notes Payable Totals
Year Ended
September 30,  Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 $ 90,000 $ 6,715 $ 21656 $ 9,594 § 111,656 $§ 16,309
2015 90,000 7,774 23.066 8.184 113,066 15,958
2016 90,000 7.378 24,547 6,703 114,547 14,081
2017 95.000 6,622 26,102 5,148 121,102 11,770
2018 95,000 5,510 27,735 3,515 122,735 9,025
2019-2023 190,000 6,308 29,451 1,800 219,451 8,108

Totals $§ 650,000 $ 40307 $ 152,557 § 34944 $§ 802557 $ 75,251

G. Interfund receivables and payables
The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2013 is as follows:
Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Municipal Court $ 838
Total $ 838

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are
recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. These amounts also
include balances of working capital loans made to several nonmajor governmental funds which the
general fund expects to collect in the subsequent year.

H. Interfund transfers

Occasionally, transfers are used to move revenues from a fund with collection authority to another
fund with related expenditure requirements or move general fund resources to provide subsidies to
other funds as needs arise.

During the year ended September 30, 2013, the government made the following one-time transfer:

A transfer of $38,521 from the Blue Hole Park Fund to the capital projects fund to assist with on-
going park capital projects.
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

I. Litigation

The City was not involved in any litigation at year-end that the City’s attorneys feel would result in a
negative outcome or present any material liability to the City.

J. Subsequent events

The City has evaluated subsequent events through December 27, 2013, the date of the audit report.
The City is not aware of any subsequent events that materially affect the financial statements.
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Funding Progress — Texas Municipal Retirement System Plan

Actuarial UAALas a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded % of
Valuation Value of Liability Funded AAL Covered Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll
(a) (b) (© (d) (e) (f
(a)/(b) (a) - (b) (d)/(e)
12/31/2010 | $  73409|S 99,839 73.5% § 2643018 238,071 11.1%
12/31/2011 98.925 122,739 80.6 23,814 276,986 8.6
12/31/2012 124.857 148,045 84.3 23,188 319,919 7.2
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditures for particular purposes.

The Municipal Court Fund is used to account for the proceeds of revenue sources which are legally
restricted to expenditures for the court.

The Sidewalks Donations Fund is used to account for donations made to the City to contribute to the
costs related to complete the sidewalk project in the City’s downtown area along Ranch Road 2325.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects , funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of the
government’s major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds.

The current Capital Projects Fund is used to account for ongoing projects related to the City's Blue Hole
Park.
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Capital Sidewalks  Non-Major
Projects Municipal  Donations Govemmenta
Fund Court Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 67545 § 9448 § 5012 $ 82,005
Total Assets $ 67545 §$ 9448 $ 5012 § 82,005
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 4835 §$ - $ 4.835
Due to other funds - 838 - 838
Total Liabilities - 5.673 - 5,673
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted for:
Restricted for capital projects - - 5,012 5,012
Committed for:
Committed for capital projects ; 67,545 - - 67,545
Committed for municipal court - 3,775 - 3,775
Total Fund Balances 67,545 3,775 5,012 76,332
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 67545 § 9448 S 5012 $§ 82,005
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Capital Sidewalks  Non-Major
Projects Municipal  Donations Govemnmenta
Fund Court Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues § 61335 8§ - $ - $ 61,335
Charges for services - 2,045 - 2,045
Investment eamings 12 8 3 23
Total revenues 61,347 2,053 3 63.403
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - 560 - 560
Capital outlay 38,521 - - 38,521
Total expenditures 38,521 560 - 39.081
Excess (deficieny) of revenues over expenditures 22,826 1,493 3 24,322
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 38,521 - - 38,521
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 38,521 - - 38,521
Net Change in Fund Balance 61,347 1,493 3 62,843
Fund Balance - Beginning 6,198 2,282 5,009 13,489
Fund Balance - Ending $§ 67545 § 3775 § 5012 § 76,332
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342 Capital of Texas Highway North

0‘1
Sl N CLETON ( LAR K Atboretum Plaza One, Suite 500
Austin, Texas 78759

& COMPANY, PC ¢ [Ph} 512.310.5600

www.singletonclark.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Wimberley, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Wimberley, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Wimberley, Texas’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Wimberley,
Texas’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Wimberley,
Texas’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Wimberley, Texas’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Wimberley, Texas’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

gm%ﬂ‘ﬁ%, (lak & &wvc/x,v,% e

Singleton, Clark & Company, PC
Austin, Texas

December 27, 2013
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CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified? [0 Yes XI No
o Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? ] Yes None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? [ Yes No
FEDERAL AWARDS

Under the guidelines of OMB Circular A-133, a Single Audit was not required due to expenditures of
federal awards being below $500,000.

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Findings Related to Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards:

No findings or questioned costs are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Findings Related to Federal Awards Which are Required to be Reported in Accordance with Section
510(c) of OMB Circular A-133:

No findings or questioned costs are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(c) of OMB
Circular A-133 for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.
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City of Wimberley

BALANCE SHEET

As of: 8/31/2014 Balances
Fund: 100 - General Fund
Assets
1011 Petty Cash 350.00
1020 General Checking - ONB 787,099.43
1021 Certificate of Deposit - Ozona 228,090.37
1030 Texpool 177,024.96
1050 Sales Tax Receivable 55,561.47
1053 Franchise Taxes Receivable 45,161.45
1150 Accounts Receivable 11,679.55
1151 Allowance for Uncoll Acct Rec -7,046.65
1302 Due from Municipal Court 2,233.34
1304 Due from BH Parkland -0.01
Total Assets 1,300,153.91
Liabilities
2010 Accounts Payable 19,121.92
2015 CC Security Deposits Payable 7,157.00
2022 Payroll Deductions Payable -2.02
2023 TML IEBP Payable 126.21
2074 TMRS Payable 465.75
2075 Septic Fees Payable 130.00
2082 Due to Special Revenue Fund 11,547.07
Total Liabilities 38,545.93
Reserves/Balances
3510 Committed FB - Public Works 300,000.00
3520 Committed FB - New City Hall 50,000.00
3530 Committed FB - W/W on Square 30,000.00
3540 Committed FB-Future Grant Matc 50,000.00
3600 Fund Balance - Uncommitted 609,081.67
3650 Net Excess (Deficit) 222,526.31
Total Reserves/Balances 1,261,607.98
1,300,153.91

Total Liabilities & Balances
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BALANCE SHEET

City of Wimberley
As of: 8/31/2014 Balances
Fund: 200 - Blue Hole Parkland
Assets
1011 Petty Cash 400.00
1022 BH Parkland - ONB 330,310.34
1301 Due from General 11,547.07
Total Assets 342,257.41
Liabilities
2010 Accounts Payable 8,333.62
2016 BH Rental Deposits Payable 2,400.00
2022 Payroll Deductions Payable 267.98
2074 TMRS Payable 586.97
Total Liabilities 11,588.57
Reserves/Balances
3600 Fund Balance - Uncommitted 205,533.30
3650 Net Excess (Deficit) 125,135.54
Total Reserves/Balances 330,668.84
342,257.41

Total Liabilities & Balances
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BALANCE SHEET

City of Wimberley
As of: 8/31/2014 Balances
Fund: 201 - Municipal Court
Assets
1023 Municipal Court - ONB 9,574.70
1024 MC Bonds - ONB 663.70
Total Assets 10,238.40
Liabilities
2076 Municipal Court Cost Payable 1,445.68
2080 Due to General 2,233.34
Total Liabilities 3,679.02
Reserves/Balances
3600 Fund Balance - Uncommitted 3,774.77
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